
Meeting contact Dianne Scambler or email dscambler@southribble.gov.uk

LICENSING PANEL
TUESDAY, 12TH FEBRUARY, 2019, 3.00 PM

WHEEL ROOM, CIVIC CENTRE, WEST PADDOCK, LEYLAND PR25 
1DH

AGENDA

1 Apologies for absence

2 Declarations of Interests

Members are requested to indicate at this stage in the 
proceedings any items on the agenda in which they intend to 
declare an interest. Members are reminded that if the interest 
is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the 
Members’ Code of Conduct) they must leave the room for the 
whole of that item. If the interest is not a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest, but is such that a member of the public 
could reasonably regard it as being so significant that it is 
likely that it would prejudice their judgment of the public 
interest (as explained in the Code of Conduct) then they may 
make representations, but then must leave the meeting for 
the remainder of the item.

3 Review of Premises Licence (Pages 3 - 76)

Report of the Interim Monitoring Officer/Assistant Director of 
Legal Services attached.

Heather McManus
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Licensing Panel Councillors 
Barbara Nathan, Jane Bell and Harry Hancock

The minutes of this meeting will be available on the internet at 
www.southribble.gov.uk

Forthcoming Meetings
Time Not Specified Date Not Specified - 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southribble.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO ON

Licensing Sub Committee Panel 12 February 2019

TITLE REPORT OF

Review of Premises Licence:- Harleys Convenience Store 
Interim Monitoring 
Officer/Assistand Director of 
Legal Services

Is this report confidential? No

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

To provide an overview of the application and inform Members of the relevant parts of 
statute and guidance relating to the review application.

2   CORPORATE PRIORITIES

The report relates to the following corporate priorities:

Excellence and Financial Sustainability

Health and Wellbeing x

Place x

Projects relating to People in the Corporate Plan:

People 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are requested to:

3.1 note the content of the report; and conduct the hearing in accordance with the hearing 
procedure and,

3.2 determine what steps are appropriate to promote the Licensing objectives. 

4.   BACKGROUND TO THE REPORT

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



4.1 On the 15th April 2018 an underage test purchaser was sold a quantity of alcohol, the seller 
on this occasion was the Premises Licence holder and Designated Premises Supervisor 
Jacqueline Bramley.

4.2  On the 1st May 2018 the premises was visited by Licensing Officers and deficiencies 
were noted with the age related training documentation that should have been in place 
and the poor standard of the refusal register, written advice was given along with a 
sample training package.

Attached to the premises license are the following conditions;

SALE OF ALCOHOL

1. The Premises licence holder shall ensure that no supply of alcohol is made 
under the premises licence- 
(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of 
the premises licence; or 
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a 
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended (section 19 of the 
Licensing Act 2003). 

2. The Premises licence holder shall ensure that every supply of alcohol under 
the premises licence must be made or authorized by a person who holds a 
personal licence (section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003).

3. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall 
ensure that an age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to 
the sale or supply of alcohol.
(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible 
person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified 
in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, 
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic 
mark.

ANNEX 2 - CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE

1. Staff training shall occur at six monthly intervals and shall be recorded and 
updated accordingly. It shall cover street drinking, ID procedure, proxy 
sales, licensing hours and other relevant matters regarding the Licensing 
Act 2003 and the licensing objectives.

2. A copy of the staff training shall be made available to any Responsible 
Authority upon request.

3. The premises shall have CCTV coverage, and notices shall be displayed 
advising customers of this.

4. Persons who appear to be under the age of 25 attempting to purchase 
alcohol shall be required to provide ID. Acceptable ID shall be; Passport, 
Photocard Driving Licence and PASS accredited cards.

Page 4



5. Liaison with the local Police shall occur as and when required.

6. A refusals register for those attempting to purchase alcohol shall be kept.

4.3 On the 25th October 2018 the premises was subject to a further test purchase and failed. 
There were numerous aggravating factors with this particular test, the first was the age of 
the volunteer , she was at the younger end of the scale in that she was only 14 at the time 
of the test. Further aggravating factor included the number of premises that were tested 
on the evening totaled 11 and Harley was the only one to fail and the final issue was there 
was no documented staff training in place for the seller Chris Scott, the son of the Licence 
holder.

4.4 Following the failure a request for CCTV footage was made to cover the time period just 
before and after the sale, examination of the footage revealed numerous suspicious and 
furtive transactions, large amounts of cash seemed to change hands between various 
customers and Chris Scott. Chris Scott appeared to produce something for the cash he 
was given but the item or product was concealed from the CCTV, the transactions were 
slick, guarded and raised suspicion as to what was actually being supplied. Due to the 
short amount of footage that was produced the concern was heightened as there were at 
least 3 or 4 transactions within a 30 minute time period that looked suspicious.

4.5 On the 6th November 2018 Jacqueline Bramley was interviewed in accordance with the 
Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984, during the interview she accepted that there was 
no training in place for Chris Scott and when confronted with a picture of the volunteer 
who was used on the 25th October she agreed that she looked well under 18 and would 
have expected any of her staff to put in a challenge.

4.6 Discussions after the interview centered on Chris Scott and the concerns held by both the 
Licensing Authority and the Police. Mrs Bramley disclosed that she had suffered serious 
health problem since May 2018 which had prevented her from running the business, she 
confirmed that she had limited choice but to allow Chris to run the shop or the business 
may fail.

4.7 On the 12th December 2019 the police visited the premises and again found deficiencies 
with the staff training documentation, again a staff member was selling alcohol with the 
pre requisite training package being completed or available for inspection.

4.8 Following this latest report the Licensing Authority applied to review the Premises Licence.    

The Licensing Authority served the review on the 18th December 2018 which was duly 
served on all the Responsible Authorities and a hand delivered copy was served at the 
Premises Licence Holders address. A copy of the Review Application and supporting 
documents are attached to this report as Appendix A

5 REPRESENTATIONS FROM RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES

5.1 The Lancashire Constabulary have submitted a written represenation attached as 
Appendix B.

6.  DECISION TO BE MADE BY THE LICENSING ACT PANEL 

Determination of an application under Section 52 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 5



6.1 Numerous paragraphs of the Section 182 Guidance are worthy of mention;

11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns 
about problems  identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence 
holders early warning of their concerns and the need for improvement, and where 
possible they should advise the licence or certificate holder of the steps they 
need to take to address those concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to 
such warnings is expected to lead to a decision to apply for a review. Co-
operation at a local level in promoting the licensing objectives should be 
encouraged and reviews should not be used to undermine this co-operation. 

11.19 Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers 
is appropriate, it may take any of the following steps: 

• modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new 
conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by 
reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times; 
• exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude 
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within 
the incidental live and recorded music exemption) 
• remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider 
that the problems are the result of poor management; 
• suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
• revoke the licence. 

11.20 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing 
authorities should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the 
concerns that the representations identify. The remedial action taken should 
generally be directed at these causes and should always be no more than an 
appropriate and proportionate response to address the causes of concern that 
instigated the review. 

The Council must carry out its licensing functions with the intention of promoting the licensing 
objectives.

The licensing objectives are:-

a) The prevention of crime and disorder;
b) Public safety;
c) The prevention of public nuisance; and 
d) The protection of children from harm.

The Panel are asked to consider the seriousness of the issues disclosed and deal with 
this application by taking account of;

1. Its own policy; and
2. Secretary of State Guidance (section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003).

8.    FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
See comments of Statutory Finance Officer below.

Page 6



9.    LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Licensing Authority are under a statutory duty to facilitate the Review Hearing.  When 
determining this hearing the Council must comply with the rules of natural justice.

Any party to the proceedings have the right to appeal the decision to the Magistrates Court.

10.  COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER
There are no financial implications at this stage as the report is to consider the licence 
review application. 

11.  COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER
The panel must carry out its functions with the intention of promoting the licensing objectives 

and
any action taken should be necessary and proportionate in the circumstances.  

12.  OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 HR & Organisational 
Development 

 ICT / Technology

 Property & Asset 
Management

 Risk 

 Equality & Diversity 

None

None

None

None

13. APPENDICES 

Appendix A - Review Application and associated documents.
Appendix B – Lancashire Constabulary Representation

Report Author: Telephone: Date:

Page 7



Justin Abbotts 01772 
625330

25th January 2019

Page 8



Page 9

clynch
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



Page 10

clynch_1
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



Page 11

clynch_2
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



Page 12

clynch_3
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



Page 13

clynch_4
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



Page 14

clynch_5
Rectangle

clynch_6
Rectangle

clynch_7
Rectangle

clynch_8
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



Page 15

clynch_9
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



Page 16

clynch_10
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



Page 17

clynch_11
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



Page 18

clynch_12
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



Page 19

clynch_13
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



  

Page 21

clynch_14
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 22

clynch_15
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



Recommendation:  

The observations were that no written records or documentary proof was 

available to demonstrate compliance with this condition. As promised I 

enclose an example of some staff training to demonstrate that you have a 

good system and would comply with the above conditions. During the visit we 

made a recommendation the refusal log be documented in a dated dairy. 

 

 

We thank you for your co-operation in the inspection and should you wish to discuss 

any issues with a Licensing Officer please contact us by email at 

licensing@southribble.gov.uk or by telephone on 01772 421491.  

 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

Justin Abbotts 

 

Licensing Officer 

  

Page 23

clynch_16
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 24

clynch_17
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 25

clynch_18
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 26

clynch_19
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 27

clynch_20
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 28

clynch_21
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 29

clynch_22
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 30

clynch_23
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 31

clynch_24
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 32

clynch_25
Rectangle

clynch_26
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 33

clynch_27
Rectangle

clynch_28
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 34

clynch_29
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 35

clynch_30
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 36

clynch_31
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 37

clynch_32
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 38

clynch_33
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 39

clynch_34
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 40

clynch_35
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 41

clynch_36
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 42

clynch_37
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 43

clynch_38
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 44

clynch_39
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 45

clynch_40
Rectangle

clynch_41
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 46

clynch_42
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 47

clynch_43
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 48

clynch_44
Typewritten Text
Appendix B

clynch_45
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 49

clynch_46
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 50

clynch_47
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 51

clynch_48
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 52

clynch_49
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 53

clynch_50
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 54

clynch_51
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 55

clynch_52
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 56

clynch_53
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 57

clynch_54
Typewritten Text
Appendix B

clynch_55
Rectangle



  

Page 58

clynch_56
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 59

clynch_57
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



  

Page 60

clynch_58
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



 

Page 61

clynch_59
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C

1

PERSON INTERVIEWED: Jackie Bramley (JB)
DATE OF BIRTH: 7/11/69
ADDRESS: 32 Bolton Road, Chorley
PLACE OF INTERVIEW: Council Offices, 

South Ribble Borough Council
DATE OF INTERVIEW: 6/11/18
TIME COMMENCED: 1.05 pm
TIME CONCLUDED: 1.18 pm
TAPE REFERENCE No:
INTERVIEWING OFFICER(S): Mark Marshall (MM), Justin Abbotts (JA)
OTHER PERSONS PRESENT: N/A

Time Person
Speaking

Text

0.00 MM The time by my watch is 1.05 pm, on the afternoon of the 6th of 
November, 2018.  We’re in an Interview Room at the Council Offices 
on West Paddock, the Council Offices of South Ribble Borough 
Council.  For voice… the interview is being tape recorded and may be 
used in evidence if your case is brought to trial.  For voice 
identification purposes I’ve got to introduce everyone in the room.  My 
name is Mark Marshall, currently Head of Licensing for South Ribble 
Council.  My colleague today is…?

JA Justin Abbotts, Licensing Officer.
MM And if you can give me your name, your date of birth and your current 

home address, please? 
JB Yeah.  It’s Jaqueline Bramley, 7th of the 11th, 69.  32 Bolton Road, 

Chorley.  
MM Okay.  And just confirm at this time, Jackie, there’s no other persons 

present in the room. 
JB No. 
MM Okay.  Right, it’s a voluntary interview.  You’re not under arrest and 

you’re free to leave at any time, and that door is open, it will take you 
out into the reception.  Also you’re entitled to have legal 
representation during the interview.  You chose not to have a solicitor 
present today.  If you wish the interview to be terminated in order to 
seek legal advice we can arrange for that to take place and you can 

Page 63



Appendix C

2

go away and get a solicitor and perhaps come back…
JB Yeah.
MM Another time if you so wish.  So, you’re entirely here at your own will.
JB Hmm-mm.
MM Before we, um, go into the interview, I’ve got to caution you in that 

you do not have to say anything, but it may harm your defence if you 
do not mention when questioned something which you later rely on in 
court.  Anything you do say may be used in evidence.  Do you 
understand that caution?  

JB I do, yeah.
MM Can you explain the caution back to me in your own words so I’m 

happy you understand it?
JB So whatever I say can be used in court. 
MM Hmm.
JB Yeah.
MM It’s a little bit more involved, believe it or not.  But one of the crucial 

things is anything you say now…
JB Hmm-mm.
MM Is kind of a key moment in time really which will be used as the sort of 

relevant…
JB Yeah.
MM Information.  So, if you do say something now but then later change 

it…
2.00 JB Change it, yeah, yeah.

MM That could potentially have what’s called an adverse inference, in that 
they may not believe your story…

JB Yeah, yeah.
MM If you change it down the line.  So that’s one of the crucial things…
JB Okay.
MM That you need to just be aware of.  Um, you’ve chosen no legal 

representation.
JB Yeah.
MM Are you happy continuing without a solicitor present?
JB Yeah, yeah, of course.
MM Okay.  Um, at the conclusion of the interview I will give you a note 

Page 64



Appendix C

3

which details how you can access a copy of these tapes, so that will 
be given to you or take during the… er, the termination of the 
interview.  The reason for the interview today is on the 25th of 
October, which was last Thursday, there was an underage sale of 
alcohol to a young test purchase volunteer, a 14 year old girl, that 
took place at Harley’s.  You’re the premises licence-holder at that 
particular premises?

JB Yeah, I am.
MM Er, Section 146 of the Licensing Act, as I’ve set out in the letter, does 

create an offence for…
JB Yeah.
MM A licence-holder…
JB Yeah, yeah, yeah.
MM As well as the seller.  Um, you’ll have a defence, potentially, if you’ve 

exercised all due diligence, and the purpose of the interview today…
JB Hmm-mm.
MM Is just to act… just explore what due diligence you had in place...
JB Yeah, yeah.
MM When you were leaving the shop in the hands of other people. 
JB Yeah.
MM So that’s the purpose of the interview.  So, um, before we get going 

can you just tell us about the shop, when it came into your 
possession and, you know, what the day-to-day running of that 
premises is?

JB Um, yeah.  Er, right, we opened last January, um... 
MM January 2018? 
JB Yeah.
MM Yeah.  And just for the benefit of the tape, obviously they don’t know 

what it is. 
JB Oh, it’s a convenience store, yeah.
MM Right, okay.  And it sells what? 
JB Er, it sells, um, alcohol…
MM Yeah.
JB Cigarettes, bread, milk…
MM Okay. 

Page 65



Appendix C

4

JB Things.
MM That’s fine, yeah.
JB Things like that.  Um, we’d never had a business before so obviously 

we’ve made a few mistakes, unfortunately.
MM Right. 
JB Um, and also, um, like what I say about the shop?
MM It’s just really when you got it…
JB Yeah.
MM Type of shop…
JB Yeah.
MM And who’s in the day-to-day control.
JB Right.  It was supposed to me that was in day-to-day control.
MM Okay. 

4.00 JB Um, but at the moment it’s not.  
MM Okay.  
JB But it will be again.
MM Yeah.  So, if we just expand on that slightly.
JB Yeah.
MM Um, so January, um, you were running it?
JB Yeah, yeah. 
MM When did you cease?  Because I understand, without prying into your 

medical history at all…
JB Yeah.  No, I’ll tell you.  I’m not… 
MM I don’t want to…
JB I can give you proof and everything, I don’t… 
MM But I just understand from the Police that you did have a few medical 

problems. 
JB I’ve had a liver transplant which was an emergency which I didn’t 

know I had a liver problem.
MM When… when did that happen?
JB Um, I started getting ill not long after you lot come in to see me. 
MM Right, okay.
JB Um…

Page 66



Appendix C

5

MM So, from January up to about May?
JB Was it May?  Yeah, yeah, um…
MM You were running it, were you? 
JB Yeah, and I’d got… I’d started him first the training manual.
MM Yeah.
JB But obviously then I took ill.  I was in hospital for weeks.
MM Right. 
JB Um, I had total liver failure.  They told me I were going to die, um, and 

then they put me on the urgent transplant list.  
MM Right. 
JB So I underwent a liver transplant.
MM Yeah. 
JB And, er, that was 12 weeks ago I finally had a transplant, and I’m only 

just… my surgeon’s just [inaudible] now. 
MM Back on your feet.
JB Well, I’m not allowed back at work. 
MM Right. 
JB But because obviously I’ve had a transplant I’m on quite a strong 

suppressants for my immune system.  So for three months I had to 
stop in the house do I didn’t get infections.

MM Yeah.
JB Stuff like that.  Um, I went to see… I go to Leeds every other week to 

see my surgeon.
MM Okay. 
JB And he has just allowed me back out a bit now.  I’m going back to 

work in January.  Um, so I have completed now the training…
MM Yeah.
JB This last couple of weeks now I’ve been up and about.
MM That’s fine. 
JB Um…
MM I really want to know, really from May then…
JB Yeah.
MM Up until… so you’ve pretty much been out of the shop since May?

Page 67



Appendix C

6

JB Yeah, yeah.
MM Who’s been running it since May? 
JB My son.
MM Right. 
JB He got thrown in at the deep end because he didn’t know anything 

about the shop.
MM Your son is…?
JB Christopher [Stott].
MM Chris.
JB Yeah.
MM So, had he had any sort of training, or…?
JB Er, briefly, because we were going to go through that whole training 

regime together…
MM Hmm.
JB You know, just before we got ill… before I got ill, sorry.  Um, I 

basically told him what to look for.
6.00 MM Hmm.

JB I’d got the booklet from my course…
MM Hmm.
JB Which was a bit… it’s… yeah, it’s good, but it’s quite [inaudible].
MM Is Chris a personal licence-holder?
JB No, no. 
MM Is there any reason why he hasn’t gone…?
JB Because he…
MM Got a personal licence?
JB Because he didn’t feel [inaudible] enough to pass the test. 
MM Right.  And has he told you that? 
JB Yeah, yeah.
MM When did he tell you that? 
JB This was when we were discussing the shop, when before we got the 

shop.
MM Right. 
JB We didn’t think he’d be able to pass the course…

Page 68



Appendix C

7

MM Okay. 
JB Because he’s not very good academically, you know what I mean? 
MM Okay.  And you were still quite comfortable leaving it in his hands 

even though he’s intimated that he doesn’t even think he could pass 
this basic licensing course? 

JB Yeah, just the writing.  It’s… it’s the writing.
MM Right.
JB You know, the [inaudible].  It’s not exactly… you can talk to him, he 

can understand things.
MM Yeah.
JB Obviously.
MM Okay. 
JB He’s not a total idiot, but he can’t sit a test. 
MM Right.  So you were about to put the training in. 
JB Yes.
MM But you didn’t quite get there.
JB No.
MM That’s fine.  And understandably you’ve had a lot of health issues. 
JB Well obviously it’s been a strain on the family as well, you see, 

because they did say I was going to die for a couple of weeks. 
MM Oh, obviously.
JB I had to get my children in…
MM I see. 
JB Explain to them that…
MM I understand. 
JB Probably…
MM Yeah.
JB Probably have weeks left to live.  If you need to speak to my doctor I 

can give you all…
MM No, no, no.  No, it’s…
JB Hmm.
MM What you’ve said to me sounds perfectly reasonable.  I just wanted to 

get your views on, you know…?

Page 69



Appendix C

8

JB Yeah.
MM A couple of things that have been happening at the shop and I just…
JB To be honest I’m surprised the shop’s still stood, with me having to go 

into hospital so suddenly…
MM Right.
JB Because Chris didn’t know about the bread deliveries…
MM Right.
JB The milk deliveries, so he basically got thrown in the deep end and…
MM Okay.  Last Thursday…
JB Yeah.
MM We’ve tested 11 premises.
JB Hmm-mm.
MM Yours was just the one that failed out of the 11.
JB Hmm.
MM Which obviously aggravates the issue. 
JB Yeah, of course, yeah.
MM Because if 10 are getting it right and one’s getting it wrong…
JB Hmm, hmm, hmm.
MM We have to look at the one that’s got it wrong.  Now, this is the young 

girl that we used.  This photo was taken…
JB Yeah, I’ve seen that [inaudible]. 
MM How old would you say she looks?
JB Probably I’d say she was 16.
MM Okay.  Just for the benefit of the tape, I’m just showing a head and 

facial shot of the volunteer.  I’m going to mark it up in front of Jackie 
as MM01, okay?

JB Hmm-mm.
MM I’m going to sign it underneath, and if I can just ask you to sign it 

underneath, just to show that that’s the photocopy I’ve shown you, 
and in your view you’ve said that you think she’s 16.  So you would 
have challenged her for ID?

8.10 JB I… I would, yeah. 
MM Would you expect your staff to have asked her for…?
JB I would, yeah.

Page 70



Appendix C

9

MM ID?  That’s fine.  And just to go back to the position with Chris, we 
took some photos of the training records.

JB Yeah.
MM Now I can see you had some in place because two of the staff…
JB I… I had started, yeah.
MM Yeah.  But Chris’s unfortunately wasn’t in place. 
JB No.
MM And because Chris was the seller…
JB Yeah, yeah.
MM Um, but that… that… again, just for the benefit of the tape I’m going 

to mark these up as MM02 and MM03.  Two photographs are these…
JB Yeah.
MM Of the training documents that were taken at Harley’s Convenience 

on the night. 
JB Yeah.
MM Um, and they’re labelled up as… as staff.
JB Yeah, yeah, yeah.
MM And you can see they’re… they’re blank.
JB Yeah, yeah, which…
MM Which you’re… you’re able to confirm as well that you hadn’t quite…?
JB Yeah, [inaudible].  No, I hadn’t quite…
MM That training in place, yeah?
JB No, I hadn’t quite finished, no.
MM For understandable reasons…
JB Yeah.
MM As you say, er, because of the medical problems.  I’m going to just 

sign both again and just get you to sign them under there. 
JB Okay.
MM Okay?  Just so I can’t refer to different photos…
JB Yeah.
MM That you’ve not had an opportunity to see.  Right, so I think really 

you’ve covered pretty much everything I need to know.  So just to 
recap, er, on some of the issues.  You went, er, sick in May.

Page 71



Appendix C

10

JB Yeah.
MM And pretty much left the running of the shop to Chris.  You did confirm 

at the beginning of the interview that it was roughly just after the first 
visit that we did.

JB It was, when I started… well, I started getting bits of illness, it was… 
which I couldn’t… but then I… it was sort of went really quick and 
[shockingly]…

MM Well we sent you a letter after that [inaudible] which was sent on the 
3rd of May.  I’m presuming you got the letter because you’ve got the 
training…

JB Yeah.
MM Because we put the training in. 
JB Yeah, yeah.
MM So you recognise that letter?
JB Well, I can’t remember but…
MM Right. 
JB I had a lot of medication, so…
MM Yeah, yeah, of course. 
JB But yeah, yeah.
MM And, er, your son Chris has been running the shop pretty much on his 

own.
JB I mean, that wasn’t a conversation we had, because I got rushed into 

hospital sort of just like, er…
MM Yeah, just…
JB [Inaudible].

10.00 MM He’s just salvaging…
JB It was horrendous, you know what I mean.
MM Yeah, keeping on top of what… what you’ve got running.  Has he got 

any other people that work with him in the shop?
JB No, he’s got some people that will stop and watch the shop while he 

goes to get stock.
MM Right. 
JB Because obviously there’s only been him, um…
MM Right. 
JB Um, and because I was in Leeds Hospital…

Page 72



Appendix C

11

MM Yeah.
JB Obviously my partner couldn’t help him because he was with me.  

Um, none of the other family could help because obviously my 
daughter doesn’t drive, er, and stuff like that, um…

MM There’s two other bits of training records in that file, relating to two 
other staff members.  Do you know who they are or not?

JB Yeah.  They don’t work there any more. 
MM They’ve gone, have they?
JB Yeah, they’ve gone, yeah.
MM So when did you put those bits of training in place?  Was that just 

after we went?
JB The two… yeah, the two girls was after you went, because Chris 

really didn’t do many hours in the shop then.  
MM What were those girls called that were working for you? 
JB Er, one was called Lauren. 
MM Lauren. 
JB And one was called Natasha. 
MM Natasha.  So you sorted them out, er, it was just Chris that was left to 

do. 
JB Yeah.  Right, so Chris…
MM But Chris had been on his own pretty much since May-ish.
JB Pretty much, yeah.  Um, and he didn’t used to do a lot of work in the 

shop, do you know what I mean? 
MM Right. 
JB So, um, that’s why I’d left Chris till last on the training.  That’s what 

the plan was, do you know, er…?
MM Yeah.
JB Because he was hardly ever there.  So it was like well I’ll leave him till 

last, make sure I get it done. 
MM Okay. 
JB But then with everything else taking over, um, I only got out of 

hospital, er, the beginning of August.
MM Right. 
JB Um, and I’ve been a prisoner for three months.  Um, it’s only because 

I’m doing so well…

Page 73



Appendix C

12

MM Do you know any other personal licence-holders that you could have 
perhaps…?

JB No.
MM Transferred the DPS position into?  There’s only you? 
JB No, not a single one, no.  I mean, to be quite honest I didn’t give the 

shop a second thought while I was in hospital.
MM No, of course not.
JB But, I know it’s not much defence but it was…
MM Yeah.  But now you’ve got to pick up the pieces because…
JB Of course I have, yeah, yeah. 
MM Thankfully you’re back on your feet. 
JB No, I have, yeah, yeah. 
MM And…
JB Yeah.
MM At some stage in the future you’ll want to go back and…
JB Oh, January I was…
MM Yeah.
JB Planning to go back. 
MM Have you got any questions, Justin?
JA No, I think you’ve covered everything that… that, er, I would have… I 

would have asked. 
12.01 MM Right.  We’re just dealing with the underage sale…

JB Right. 
MM For the purposes of this interview.  Um, and as far as I’m concerned 

now you’ve put… and we’ve put everything to you. 
JB Yeah.
MM The volunteer which you’ve confirmed…
JB Yeah.
MM Looked 16 in your view and you’d expect any staff member to 

challenge and test.  You confirmed that, er, two records were in place 
for previous staff, Lauren and Natasha.

JB I mean his training now has been done. 
MM Yeah.  But at the time…

Page 74



Appendix C

13

JB No, at the time it hadn’t been, and we do have signs up all over the 
shop…

MM Right. 
JB Saying: “No ID no sale.”
MM But you’ve got a fair excuse in terms of the medical emergency you 

were subject to.
JB Yeah.  And I… and I can produce any…
MM Yeah, that’s fine. 
JB Documents.  I’ll give you my surgeon’s…
MM That’s… that’s… no, no problem.  Right, if there’s nothing further from 

you, Justin then, I’m going to give, um, Jackie a copy of, er, the notes 
about how you can access a copy of the, um, tapes. 

JB Yeah.
MM Or CD.
JB Yeah.
MM I think this one is possibly… yeah, it’s an address that we just need to 

cross out…
JB Okay.
MM And give you the South Ribble address on…
JB All right. 
MM On there.  So we shall sort that out. 
JB All right. 
MM Um, right, the time by my watch – unless you want to add or clarify 

anything…?
JB Just what happens now, really?
MM We can discuss that after the tape, yeah.
JB Oh, okay, yeah, yeah, fine. 
MM Um, right.  You’ve got nothing to add in relation to this particular 

matter?
JB I have no great excuses, so that’s…
MM Right, okay.  So the time by my watch now is, er, 18 minutes past 

1.00, and I’m stopping the tapes. 
END OF INTERVIEW

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Review of Premises Licence
	Appendix A - Review
	Appendix B - Supporting Evidence
	Appendix C - Interview of Jackie Bramley




